

POLICY: HEAT AND INCLEMENT WEATHER (BOWLS SA EVENTS)

Controlled number		051	Contro	Control Doc Level 1		1	Version	2
Drafted by	Manager, Clubs and		Approve	d by	12 Decemb	er 2022		
	Governance		Board					
Responsible	Manager, Game and Corporate		rate	Schedule	ed	August 202	3	
person	Services			Review				

Contents

Purpose	2
Scope	2
Definitions	3
Responsibilities	3
Policy	4
Monitoring Conditions & Trigger Points	4
Environmental Factors	6
Hot Weather	6
Heatwaves	6
Bushfire Dangers	6
Cold Weather	7
Rain	
Hail	
Lighting	8
Wind and Air Quality	8
Modifying Considerations	8
Outcomes of modified or Abandoned games	g
Withdrawal	g
Monitoring, Breaches and Misuse	g
References, Legislation & Industrial Instruments	10
Policy Reviews and Updates	10
Version History	10
Appendix 1: Guidelines for Nearest Weather Stations	11



Purpose

Bowls SA strives to ensure that it members participate in the game of bowls in the safest and most enjoyable environment possible. While the impact and risk can vary, depending on location, surface played on, other weather elements and the intensity of the activity, in South Australia extreme weather such as cold, lightning, extreme heat and catastrophic fire danger is a risk for our sport.

The principles of this policy are to ensure that:

- Those controlling a competition or activity understand their duty of care and are empowered to make decision relating to this responsibility
- We don't want to act too early such that activities are cancelled unnecessarily, but equally we need to act where appropriate
- Where possible, we will first seek to modify the activity in preference to cancelling
- Participant players, officials' volunteers or spectator, remain the paramount consideration
- Every individual has a personal responsibility to ensure that they apply sound selfmanagement practices to minimise any likely effects of weather on their health and wellbeing.

Scope

Staff	Board Members	Delegated Authorised Person(s)	Bowls SA managed activities	High performance programs	Association managed activities	Club managed activities	Players & Club Members
✓	✓	✓	✓	✓	*	*	✓

Where the Bowls SA or Competition Manager representing Bowls SA, is hosting a Bowls SA managed event in conjunction with another party, the Competition Manager will coordinate with the other party's competition manager/organisers as to what their extreme weather policy is to make a joint decision regarding what to do in extreme weather events.



Definitions

Term	Definition			
Participant	Player, athlete, member, volunteer, spectator			
Controlling Body	Organisation responsible for the delivery of activity. This includes Bowls SA,			
	Associations and Clubs			
Activity	Event, competition, tournam	ent, training or other activity		
Inclement weather	Maybe one or more of the fo	llowing:		
	Lightning (i.e. Extreme cold			
	storm)	 Heavy fog or frost 		
	 Heavy rain, hail or 	 Flooding, etc. 		
	snow	•		
	 High winds 			
	 Extreme heat 			
Trigger Point	A point defined by this policy, where the weather conditions require the			
	Controlling Body/Competition Manager to assess the situation and make a duty			
	of care decision regarding th	e state of play		

Responsibilities

The following outlines the roles and responsibility for all covered by this policy:

Who	Responsibility
Bowls SA	 Manager of all Bowls SA events, competitions, tournaments or programs or activities Must consult with Match Officials/Umpire/Competition Manager and Ground staff/Green Keeper
Competition Manager	 Bowls SA staff or in some cases, a delegated authorised person On site manager of the activity/competition on behalf of the Bowls SA and therefore has the authority to make decisions regarding risk and status of play To communicate and work with Match Official/Umpire, Green Keeper, participants regarding risk and the status of play Encouraged participants apply sound self-management practices Ensure drinks should be available at every venue where play/competition takes place. Tap water should be available free of charge and in unlimited quantities.
Match Official / Umpire	 Manages the game To communicate and work with the competition manager in case they believe conditions are unsafe
Green Keeper	 Manages the status of the greens Has the authority to close greens based on the risk to participants or the greens themselves To communicate and work with Controlling Body, Competition Manager and Match Official/Umpire regarding risk and the status of play
Participant	To be aware of the policy and the potential outcomes of a weather impacted event may have on their involvement



Take into account their own health considerations before and during a game of Bowls.
 Have a personal responsibility to ensure that they apply sound self- management practices to minimise any likely effects of heat on their health and well-being.
If they consider the weather is unsafe for them to play, they need to let their event manager and club know of their unavailability asap

Policy

Monitoring Conditions & Trigger Points

Bowls SA recognises that there can be a fine line when it comes to decision making regarding the cancelling/modifying an activity because of the impact of weather. Some decisions are easy to make, others can be more challenging and all decisions can have various levels of impact on different stakeholders. It is important to find the right balance. Some decisions can't be helped but being made at the last minute.

The following planning guide has been developed to assist Bowls SA, those planning and those participating in all Bowls SA managed events and activities be aware of key decision trigger points

Timing	Activities			
Pre event	Where possible back up venue sought			
	Risk management and Modification plans developed, in place and			
	communicated			
	Event registration Terms and Conditions to include and highlight:			
	- Weather policy			
	- Refund policy			
	- Modifications statement			
	- Participants responsibility and risk of participation			
7 days out from	Monitoring of conditions			
start time	Pre active communication to venues and participants			
2 days	If it looks like weather could impact the running of the activity:			
	Communication to participants noting:			
	- The possibility of modification and or cancellation			
	- What options the participant has			
	- Outline of plans of what will occur between now and the planned			
	activity			
	Competition manager to work with and communicate with the venue and			
	other stakeholders			
24 hour prior to	Where weather conditions are likely to impact an activity:			
activity	- Communicate to participants and other stakeholders them aware of			
	any expected impacts and modifications being implemented for the			
	following days activity.			
Morning of	2 hours before the start of the first activity:			
activity	The temperature and conditions will be assessed by the Competition			
	Manager and an announcement to all players and officials will be made,			
	making them aware of any expected impacts and modifications being			
	implemented.			



Conditions deemed SUITABLE:

Where the conditions allow for the activity to take place, before the start of play each day Competition Manager will:

• Communicate this to all stakeholders but make them aware that this could change if and when conditions change

Conditions deemed NOT SUITABLE resulting in the delayed or modification:

If at the start of the day, the Competition Manager deems the conditions (as indicated using one of the methods listed in this policy) has reached a trigger point requiring action for that location:

- The start of play will be delayed by the Controlling Body
- Start of play can be delayed for up to a period of 2 hours, before a
 decision regarding modification, reschedule or cancelling of the
 activity must be made.
- The controlling body has up to 1.5 hours to make this decision.

During activity

Conditions deemed NOT SUITABLE during play:

If during the day of play, the Competition Manager deems the temperature/conditions (as indicated using one of the methods listed in this policy) has reached a trigger point requiring action for that location:

- If safe to do so, all participants will complete the end they are currently playing and move from the green.
 - If the end is declared dead, the end will be replayed when the game is restarted
- Play can be delayed for up to a period of 2 hours, before a decision regarding modification, reschedule or cancelling of the activity must be made.
 - The controlling body has up to 1.5 hours to make this decision.

• Improvement of conditions:

 When the Competition Manager determines the conditions has improved (based on the recommendations outlined in this policy), play should resume.

• Deterioration or no improvement in conditions:

 Depending on the impacting conditions, within 1 hour of the activity being suspended, if the Competition Manager determines the condition has or is not likely NOT to improve (as determined by this policy) within the next 2hours, abandon play.



Environmental Factors

Hot Weather

- Each Bowls SA and Competition Manager will have a local approach to measuring temperature by referring to the Bureau of Meteorology (BOM) temperature for the area utilising a reading from the local weather station, as noted in the appendix 1)
- If a change is made to an activity either in day or time, or if it is abandoned, Bowls SA or Competition manager (in conjunction with Bowls SA) will make all efforts to communicate changes to all stakeholders via Phone (call or SMS), E-mail and where possible on the suitable social media channels.

Trigger points for Hot Weather

Temperature	Action and Outcome
38c or above	If the temperature is predicted to be over 38c or above on the day of competition, and other weather conditions such as humidity, wind are also impacting the temperature, all scheduled matches are to either: a) Abandon their game b) Mutually agree to play their match at an alternative time or day (provided it does not exceed 38c degrees) in line with the competition
Between 34c and 37c	If the temperature is between 34c and 37c, and other weather conditions are impacting the temperature, mitigation can be considered implemented.
Below 34c	If temperature is below 34c and other weather conditions are not impacting the conditions, the game will be played at the normally schedule time and format.

Heatwaves

Bowls SA and Competition Managers are to watch for unusual "heatwave" conditions or variations from the average temperature for the time of year and location. Bowls SA and Competition Managers are to use the above 'Trigger points for hot weather' and 'Monitoring conditions plan' to support the decision-making process during heatwaves.

Bushfire Dangers

In the case of Bushfire warnings, the following guide will be used to determine if bowls activities will take place in a local area.

All should be aware:

- <u>Australian Fire Danger Ratings</u> are routinely issued by 5pm daily during the fire season. These ratings are determined in conjunction with Bureau of Meteorology (BOM).
- Fire Danger Ratings and Total Fire Ban information for days 2, 3 and 4 are preliminary forecasts and should be used as a guide only. These ratings may change based on both weather and non-weather-related factors. Total Fire Bans are officially declared after 4pm the day prior.
- BOM (bom.gov.au/sa/forecasts/fire-danger-ratings.shtml) and the CFS (cfs.sa.gov.au/bans-and-ratings/) are the best sources for up-to-date information

When the Bureau of Meteorology or Country Fire Service, declare a day of Catastrophic Fire Danger in the area or surrounding areas, all bowls will be cancelled in the area affected.



Fire Danger Rating Days

The following matrix will be used to by Bowls SA and Competition Manages to make decisions with regard to fires:

Current	Actions		
Catastrophic	All bowls activities cancelled in affected areas		
Extreme	Cancellation of bowls activities will be considered in affected areas.		
High	Bowls activities in affected areas can continue only if:		
	 The venue has a current fire action plan in place 		
	 Conditions are monitored thought out the day 		
Low-	Bowls activities can carry on as planned		
Moderate			

Fire declared

If a fire is declared in the local area, all bowls activities are to be cancelled and members should refer to the CFS website or AlerSA app regarding the bushfire warning status (Advice, Watch and Act, Emergency Warning)

Cold Weather

Games would not normally be varied for cold weather, unless one of the following is also a factor.

- Hail or snow
- Thunderstorm
- Extreme wind
- Heavy rain flooding
- Extreme cold weather

The impact on games of adverse weather shall be dealt with in accordance with conditions of play and the laws of the sport.

Rain

- Before the start of the event, the Bowls SA and the Competition Manager will monitor the expected conditions for the duration of the event.
- If it begins to rain, play will continue until the Competition Manager in conjunction with the Match Official/Umpire and Green Keeper or their representative deems it unsafe for participants or the greens to do so.
- When the Competition Manager deems it safe to return to the green, play should resume as in accordance with conditions of play and the laws of the sport.

Hail

- All hailstorms present some risk to participants in an open playing field, and the size and
 intensity of the storm can change dramatically in a short period of time. All play should be
 suspended during hailstorms so that participants can seek suitable shelter.
- Play should be restarted after the hail has stopped falling, with particular attention being given to the amount of ice on the playing surface (size and thickness of layer).
 - In some cases, it may be unsafe to resume the activity immediately due to an ice covered surface. Deferral of the restart to allow melting (or manual clearing in parts) should be considered in extreme circumstances.



Lighting

- Lightning can strike without other typical storm characteristics (i.e. thunder, rain and wind) being present.
- If lightning is present, play should be immediately suspended. Players should move inside a sturdy building and stay inside until 30 minutes after the last sighting of lightning.
- Artificial Devices such as Bowlers Arms and Bowls Lifters should not be handled while lightning is present.
- When the Competition Manager deems it is safe to return to the green, play should resume as per in accordance with conditions of play and the laws of the sport.

Lightning safety tips:

Use the 30/30 Lightning Rule.

If the time between the lightning flash and the thunder sound is less than 30 seconds then play should be suspended, and not resumed until 30 minutes after the last thunder. 30 seconds means that the lightning is approximately 10 kilometres away.

Find safe shelter.

Sturdy buildings are the safest place to be during lightning storms. Avoid sheds, picnic shelters, metal coaching boxes and goals. Staying in a car with windows closed also offers some protection.

Wind and Air Quality

Games would not normally be varied for wind, unless one of the following is also a factor:

- Extreme chill
- Extreme heat
- Extreme wind
- Poor air quality

If the EPA Air Quality Forecast for the local area falls between any of the following readings, the following actions should take place:

EPA Air Quality	Timing	Outcome
Extremely poor	2 hours before the game	 Games will be abandoned. This would be communicated by the Controlling Body/Competition Manager to all relevant participants and stakeholders
Poor or Very Poor	2 hours before the game	 Controlling Bodies/Competition Managers to manage the activity within line with rules of plan and allowed modifications Conditions will be monitor throughout the day.

Air Quality Rating information can be accessed form here:

 $epa.sa.gov. au/environmental_info/air_quality/new-air-quality-monitoring$

Modifying Considerations

In the event of extreme weather, Bowls SA and the Competition Manager, in conjunction with the Match Official/Umpire, has the right to alter the Conditions of Play for to ensure that play continues whilst maintaining:



a duty of care to all participants involved in the activity

- a duty of care to the greens
- the integrity of the competition

The following modifications can be made to an activity to allow continuation of play:

- Delayed start/early finish
- Reschedule to another day/time
- Reductions of ends
- Additional breaks
- Additional environmental Additional shade, fans etc

Outcomes of modified or Abandoned games

In line with the rules of the sport and the activities conditions of play, the following should be used as a guide to manage results and outcomes:

Controlling Body	Activity	Recommend Outcome	
Bowls SA Pathway event eg State event		Event to be reschedule to allow for	
		results	
	Non pathway event	Best placed	

Withdrawal

Any participant who considers that the effects of the forecast weather condition for the day of an activity will have an adverse effect on their health, safety and well-being, can withdraw from the competition or event without penalty, if the Competition Manage has been advised by 5pm the day before the competition.

Such withdrawal may also occur during the course of play where the temperature on the green is at a level that the player considers places them at risk. Such actions would be managed as a forfeit in line with the conditions of play.

Participants who chose not to participate in an event due to Extreme or Catastrophic Fire Danager, will not be financially penalised for the non attendance.

The team that is impacted by the withdrawal will have the following options:

- 1. To utilise a substitute as per conditions of play
- 2. Withdraw their team from the competition.

 If this occurs, the team will not be penalised a Withdrawal and non attendance fee', as noted in Bowls SA Fines, Penalties & Lodgement Fees Schedule and Conditions of Play.

Should a team withdraw from the competition, the results will be recorded as a bye as per Conditions of play.

Monitoring, Breaches and Misuse

It is the Board responsibility to ensure that the CEO, with the support of Senior Management, has systems in place and that those covered by this policy, are adhering to it.



References, Legislation & Industrial Instruments

This policy & procedure is not intended to override any industrial instrument, contract, award, or legislation.

• Bowls SA Fines, Penalties & Lodgement Fees Schedule

Policy Reviews and Updates

This policy will be updated as needed if there are any changes in the business or regulatory environment.

It is scheduled for a comprehensive review outlined in the 003, Control Document Register. The CEO will initiate this review and conduct with the support of the Governance Committee.

Version History

Version	Changes	Endorsement date:	Endorsed by:
2	Included Guidelines for nearest Weather Station	12 December 2022	Board

Please note, most recent version information needs to be located at the top of the table



Appendix 1: Guidelines for Nearest Weather Stations

Club	Station
Adelaide Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Adelaide High OS Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Adelaide Oval Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Aldinga Bay Bowling Club	Noarlunga
Alford Bowling Club	Kadina
Angaston Bowling Club	Nuriootpa
Ardrossan Bowling Club	Minlaton Airport
Arno Bay Bowling Club	Cleve Airport
Arthurton Bowling Club	Kadina
Ascot Park Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Auburn Bowling Club	Clare
Balaklava Bowling Club	Roseworthy
Barmera Bowling Club	Renmark Airport
Beachport Bowling Club	Robe Airport
Beaumont Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Berri Bowling Club	Renmark Airport
BHAS Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Birchmore Bowling Club	Parndana
Blackwood Bowling Club	Noarlunga
Blanchetown Bowling Club	Roseworthy
Blyth Bowling Club	Clare
Booborowie Bowling Club	Clare
Booleroo Centre Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Bordertown Bowling Club	Keith West
Brighton Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Brinkworth Bowling Club	Snowtown
Burra Bowling Club	Clare
Bute Bowling Club	Kadina
Cadell Bowling Club	Roseworthy
Caltowie Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Ceduna & Districts Bowling Club	Ceduna
Christies Beach Bowling Club	Noarlunga



Clare Bowling Club	Clare
Clarence Gardens Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Clarendon Bowling Club	Noarlunga
Clearview Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Cleve & District Bowling Club	Cleve Airport
Coffin Bay Bowling Club	Point Avoid
Colonel Light Gardens Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Coonalpyn Bowling Club	Keith West
Cowell & District Bowling Club	Cleve Airport
Croydon Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Crystal Brook Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Cummins Bowling Club	Cummins Airport
Curramulka Bowling Club	Minlaton Airport
Edithburgh RSL and Bowling Club	Edithburgh
Edwardstown Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Encounter Bay Bowling Club	Parawa West
ETSA Bowling & Croquet Club	Port Augusta
Eudunda Bowling Club	Clare
Frances Bowling Club	Naracoorte
Freeling Bowling Club	Roseworthy
Gawler Bowling Club	Edinburgh
Georgetown Memorial Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Geranium & District Bowling Club	Lameroo AWS
Gladstone Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Glenelg Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Goolwa Bowling Club	Hindmarsh Island
Grange Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Gulnare Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Gumeracha District Bowling Club	Mount Crawford
Hahndorf Bowling Club	Mount Lofty
Hallett Bowling Club	Clare
Hamley Bridge Bowling Club	Roseworthy
Happy Valley Bowling Club	Noarlunga
Hawker Bowling Club	Port Augusta



Hawthorn Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Henley Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Holdfast Bay Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Hope Valley Bowling Club	Edinburgh
Jamestown Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Jervois Bowling Club	Pallamana
Kadina Bowling Club	Kadina
Kalangadoo Bowling Club	Mount Gambier
Kapunda Bowling Club	Nuriootpa
Karoonda & District Bowling Club	Lameroo AWS
Keith Bowling Club	Keith West
Kensington/Marryatville Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Kimba Bowling Club	Cleve Airport
Kingscote Bowling Club	Kingscote Airport
Kingston SE Bowling Club	Cape Jaffa
Kirton Bowling Club	Port Lincoln Airport
Koolunga Bowling Club	Snowtown
Lameroo Bowling Club	Lameroo AWS
Langhorne Creek Bowling Club	Strathalbyn
Laura Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Lenswood Bowling Club	Mount Lofty
Lobethal Bowling Club	Mount Lofty
Lock Bowling Club	Cleve Airport
Lockleys Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Loxton District Bowling Club	Renmark Airport
Loxton RSL District Bowling Club	Renmark Airport
Lucindale War Memorial Bowling Club	Naracoorte
Lyndoch & Districts Bowling Club	Nuriootpa
Lyrup Club Bowling Club	Renmark Airport
Maitland Bowling Club	Minlaton Airport
Mallala Bowling Club	Roseworthy
Mannum Bowling Club	Pallamana
Marion Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Marion RSL Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport



McLaren Vale Bowling Club	Kuitpo
Meadows Bowling Club	Kuitpo
Melrose Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Meningie Bowling Club	Keith West
Milang Bowling Club	Strathalbyn
Millicent Bowling Club	Mount Gambier
Millswood Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Minlaton Bowling Club	Minlaton Airport
Minnipa Bowling Club	Minnipa RS
Mintaro Bowling Club	Clare
Modbury Bowling Club	Edinburgh
Monash Bowling Club	Renmark Airport
Moonta Memorial Park Bowling Club	Kadina
Moorook Bowling Club	Renmark Airport
Morgan Bowling Club	Renmark Airport
Morphett Vale Memorial Bowling Club	Noarlunga
Mount Barker Bowling Club	Mount Lofty
Mount Gambier Bowls Club	Mount Gambier
Mount Gambier RSL Bowling Club	Mount Gambier
Mount Pleasant Bowling Club	Mount Crawford
Mundoora Bowling Club	Snowtown
Mundulla Bowling Club	Keith West
Murray Bridge Bowling Club	Pallamana
Murray Bridge RSL Bowling Club	Pallamana
Murrayville & RSL Bowling Club	Lameroo AWS
Myponga Bowling Club	Strathalbyn
Naracoorte Bowls Club	Naracoorte
Naracoorte RSL & District Bowling Club	Naracoorte
North Broken Hill Bowling Club	Broken Hill Airport
Novar Gardens Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Nuriootpa Bowling Club	Nuriootpa
Oakbank Bowling Club	Mount Lofty
Orroroo Bowling Club	Port Augusta
Owen Bowling Club	Roseworthy



Padthaway Bowling Club	Padthaway
Para Hills Bowling Club	Edinburgh
Parilla Bowling Club	Lameroo AWS
Parndana Bowling Club	Parndana
Paskeville Bowling Club	Kadina
Payneham Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Penfield Bowling Club	Edinburgh
Penola Bowling Club	Coonawarra
Peterborough Bowling Club	Port Pirie
Pinnaroo Bowling Club	Lameroo
Playford Bowling Club	Edinburgh
Poochera & District Bowling Club	Minnipa RS
Port Adelaide Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Port Augusta Bowling Club	Port Augusta
Port Broughton Bowling Club	Kadina
Port Elliot Bowling Club	Hindmarsh Valley
Port Germein Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Port Lincoln Bowling Club	Port Lincoln Airport
Port MacDonnell & District Bowling Club	Mount Gambier
Port Neill Bowling Club	Cummins Airport
Port Noarlunga Bowling Club	Noarlunga
Port Pirie Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Port Vincent Memorial Bowling Club	Edithburgh
Port Victoria Bowling Club	Minlaton Airport
Port Wakefield Bowling Club	Snowtown
Prospect-Broadview Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Quorn Bowling Club	Port Augusta
Redhill Bowling Club	Snowtown
Renmark Bowling Club	Renmark Airport
Renmark RSL & District Bowling Club	Renmark Airport
Reynella Community Centre Bowling Club	Noarlunga
Riverton Bowling Club	Clare
Robe Bowling Club	Robe Airport
Robertstown Bowling Club	Clare



Rosewater Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Saddleworth Bowling Club	Clare
Salisbury Bowling Club	Edinburgh
Semaphore Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Snowtown Bowling Club	Snowtown
Somerton Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Spalding Memorial Bowling Club	Clare
Stansbury Bowling Club	Edithburgh
Strathalbyn Bowling Club	Strathalbyn
Streaky Bay Bowling Club	Ceduna
Sturt Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Swan Reach Soldiers Memorial Bowling Club	Nuriootpa
Tailem Bend Bowling Club	Pallamana
Tanunda Bowling Club	Nuriootpa
Tarlee Bowling Club	Roseworthy
Tintinara Bowling Club	Keith West
Toorak Burnside Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Torrensville Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Tranmere Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Trinity Gardens Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Tumby Bay Bowling Club	Port Lincoln Airport
Two Wells Bowling Club	Edinburgh
Uraidla Bowling Club	Mount Lofty
Victor Harbor Bowling Club	Hindmarsh Island
Waikerie Bowling Club	Renmark Airport
Walkerville Bowling Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
Wallaroo Bowling Club	Kadina
Wallaroo Mines Bowling Club	Kadina
Warooka Bowling Club	Minlaton Airport
Wasleys Bowling Club	Roseworthy
Watervale Bowling Club	Clare
West Croydon & Kilkenny RSL Bowls Club	Adelaide (West Terrace)
West Lakes Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Whyalla Bowling Club	Whyalla



Whyalla Golf Bowling Club	Whyalla
Willunga Bowling Club	Noarlunga
Wilmington Bowling Club	Port Augusta
Wirrabara Bowling Club	Port Pirie Airport
Wirrulla Bowling Club	Minnipa RS
Woodside Bowling Club	Mount Lofty
Woodville Bowling Club	Adelaide Airport
Wudinna & District Bowling Club	Wudinna Airport
Yacka Bowling Club	Clare
Yankalilla Bowling Club	Noarlunga
Yorketown Bowling Club	Minlaton Airport
Zinc Broken Hill Bowling Club	Broken Hill Airport

